
 
White Wolf Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Regular Board Meeting of the Board of Directors 
  

Agenda 
November 1, 2022 at 1:00 p.m. 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need disability-related modifications or 
accommodations, including auxiliary aids or services, please call Angelica Martin (661) 663-4262. 
 

Page 1 of 2 

In Person: Wheeler Ridge-Maricopa Water Storage District Headquarters 
12109 Highway 166 

Bakersfield, CA 93313 
 

Or Virtual Option:  
Go To Meeting: https://meet.goto.com/911605181  

Call by Phone: (872) 240-3311 Access Code: 911-605-181 

1. Call to order 

2. Recognition of Guests 

3. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of October 6, 2022 

4. Report by Board Secretary (Angelica) 

a. Financial Accounting 

5. Updates on Actions Discussed or Authorized on October 6, 2022 (EKI) 

a. Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) Implementation Updates 

i. October fieldwork activities 

ii. Update on groundwater levels through October 2022 

b. SGMA Implementation Round 2 Grant Application Update 

i. Grant application clarifications 

ii. Final proposed Project list 

c. Process for Establishing Projects/Management Actions (P/MAs) Committee  

6. Discussion on Process for Imposing a Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Administrative Charge (Sheridan/Legal) 

7. Discussion on Landowner Recharge Policy (Director Reiter/EKI) 

8. Correspondence 

9. Public Comment 

At this time, the public may address the Board on any item not appearing on the agenda that is 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. Comments will be limited to three minutes. 

https://meet.goto.com/911605181


 
White Wolf Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Regular Board Meeting of the Board of Directors 
  

Agenda 
November 1, 2022 at 1:00 p.m. 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need disability-related modifications or 
accommodations, including auxiliary aids or services, please call Angelica Martin (661) 663-4262. 
 

Page 2 of 2 

10. Consider and provide direction on future agenda items 

11. Closed Session – Anticipated litigation (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2))—1 
item. 

12. Report Out of Closed Session 

13. Adjourn 



White Wolf Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Wheeler Ridge-Maricopoa Water Storage District 

12109 Highway 166, Mettler, CA 93313 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Date of Meeting: Thursday, October 6, 2022 
Location:  Remote and In-Person 
 
Meeting Commenced at 9:04 a.m. 
 
DIRECTORS PRESENT: Tito Martinez, George Cappello, Jeff Giumarra, Jeff Mettler, Allen 
Lyda, and Jon Reiter  
 
ALTERNATES: None  
 
DIRECTORS ABSENT:  None 
 
PUBLIC AND STAFF:  David Kames from Rabobank, Doug Gosling, Stacey Ann Silva, Maryse 
Suppiger from Manulife Investment, Brad DeBranch from Bolthouse, Anona Dutton, and Christina 
Lucero from EKI, Jeevan Muhar AEWSD, Tom Suggs, Sheridan Nicholas, Danyel Ruth, and Eric 
McDaris with WRMWSD, Angelica Martin, and Legal Counsel Alan Doud, were present. 

 
The meeting was initiated with the introduction of Resolution 2022-06, Allowing Remote 
Teleconference Meetings Under AB361.  On motion by Director Reiter, seconded by Director 
Mettler, the resolution was unanimously approved.  The motion was carried upon roll call vote for 
approval. 
 
President Martinez advised the board would initiate closed session and asked the public attending in 
person to please exit the room and those online, he explained would be put on a “waiting room” and 
let back in once open session commenced. 
 
Closed session commenced at 9:06 a.m.  
 
There was nothing to report out of closed session.  Open session began at 9:48. a.m. 
 
President Martinez did a recognition of guests. 
 
The draft meeting minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of September 6, 2022 was presented by 
Ms. Martin.  On motion by Director Lyda and seconded by Director Giumarra, the minutes were 
unanimously approved.  The motion was carried upon roll call vote for approval. 

    
 Ms. Martin presented Resolution 2022-07, In the Matter of Adopting a Regular Meeting Schedule.  
The WWGSA has been holding its regular board meetings every quarter, Resolution 2022-07 
proposed a regular board meeting be held every month.   After a brief discussion and on motion by 
Director Giumarra, seconded by Director Lyda, the resolution was unanimously approved.  The 
motion was carried upon roll call vote for approval. 

 
Christina Lucero from EKI gave a presentation starting with an update on groundwater 
levels through September 2022.  Christina continued to talk about the official opening for 
solicitation of SGMA Implementation Round 2 Grant.  Applications are due end of 
November.  The Board agreed to request $20 million with a 5% cost share.  There was also 
discussion regarding the aspects that need to be considered when picking the projects that 
will be submitted as part of the application packet, and the importance of this process.  It 



was also recommended that having letters of support for the grant application packet would 
be beneficial.   
 
As a follow-up to that conversation, Resolution 2022-08, Authorizing Filing Application for SGMA 
Implementation Grant, was presented to the Board.  After a brief discussion, and on motion by 
Director Reiter, seconded by Director Lyda, Resolution 2022-08 was unanimously approved.  The 
motion was carried upon roll call vote for approval. 

 
The certification of pending well permit applications were discussed.  The Board was informed that 
further landowner outreach was made.  A workshop took place on September 27th to provide the 
stakeholders updates as to the hydrology of the basin. After a brief discussion, the board authorized 
the approval of said applications. 
 
There was a presentation from Anona that talked about PMAs that were identified in the GSP as 
well as example of case studies.  There was discussion about potential pumping reductions, well 
metering reporting programs, and other examples of demand management approaches.  There was 
also discussion regarding actual case studies and the complexity and result of each one of them.  
That brought up the questions of how to initiate PMAs in the WWB.  The technical committee 
recommended establishing a Committee for PMAs planning, and policy discussion to support 
recharge projects.  EKI provided options on how the committee could be structured.  After further 
conversation, the Board opted for a Tiered Committee.  It was agreed that Ms. Martin would 
coordinate the formation of said committee.  

 
The was no correspondence to report. 
 
There were no public comments.  
 
Sheridan Nicholas suggested a subject matter for a future Board agenda.  He spoke about adding 
fees and charges that would be applied by the WWGSA as a possible replacement for a Prop 218.  
This discussion would open feedback and input from Landowners, as well as Board Directors, and 
Legal counsel. 
 
Ms. Martin advised next meeting would be on November 1st. 

 
  On motion by Director Lyda, seconded by Director Giumarra, the White Wolf GSA Board meeting 
was adjourned at 11:14 a.m.  

 
 
 Angelica Martin, Secretary, White Wolf Subbasin GSA  
 
 
Approved by:  White Wolf Subbasin GSA Board of Directors Dated:  November, 1 2022 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



WHITE WOLF GSA - OCTOBER 31, 2022
FUNDING 200,001$        
INTEREST INCOME 30                    

TOTAL FUNDING 200,031          

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - CONSULTING 80,747            
FEES - OTHER 107                  

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 80,853            

FUNDING AVAILABLE AT OCTOBER 31, 2022 119,177$        



 

White Wolf Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency 

Arvin-Edison Water Storage District 
Tejon-Castac Water District 

Wheeler Ridge-Maricopa Water Storage District 
Kern County 

 

Page 1 of 1 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Date:  31 October 2022 

Item:  7. Landowner Recharge Policy 

BACKGROUND 

To facilitate Board discussion regarding a policy to encourage landowner recharge, three example District 
and/or Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) groundwater banking/recharge policies have been 
attached:  

(1) McMullin Area GSA: simplified policy encouraging water banking and seeking coordination and 
partnerships to enhance recharge; 

(2) Shafter-Wasco Irrigation District: landowner groundwater recharge policy and associated 
landowner recharge agreement; and  

(3) Lower Tule River Irrigation District GSA: detailed suite of 8 policies, where policy 2 outlines 
landowner groundwater banking. 

DISCUSSION 

The Projects & Management Actions (P/MA) committee is anticipated to be established by January 2023. 
A key role will be compiling and reviewing policies such as these attached as a means to inform any policies 
developed and adopted by the White Wolf GSA.  

Attached:  Three example landowner groundwater banking/recharge policies. 





































Policy 1: Water Measurement & Metering

Lower Tule River Irrigation District
Groundwater Sustainability Agency

WATER IV1EASUREIVIENT & METERING

The landowners within the GSA utilize both surface water and groundwater to meet the
needs of the business operations and producing agricultural products. A key component to

manage the sustainability of groundwater is to measure quantitatively the total amount of water
used by each landowner within the GSA. This will allow the GSA to track groundwater water
usage by landowner which can then be correlated to the amounts allowed to achieve

sustainabiiity.

The GSA will utilize satellite imagery to determine crop demands at the landowner level
as described in more detail below:

Calculate Groundwater Consumed using Evapotranspiration

To calculate the amount of groundwater consumed by the crop, the following equation
is applied:

1. Total Applied Surface Water is supplied and metered by the Irrigation District.

2. Total Crop Demand (Evapotranspiration or ET) is calculated by a third party,
using NASA LandSat satellite imagery.

a. Consumption, based on the ET calculations will first be reduced by surface

water deliveries, then accounted for in the following sequencing:

i. Precipitation Yield

ii. Sustainable Yield credits
iii. District allocated groundwater credits
iv. Transitional groundwater credits**

v. Landowner developed groundwater credits**

**The sequencing of the Transitional water credits and Landowner

developed groundwater credits can be switched at the landowner's

discretion.

b. If surface water applied is more than ET, the landowner will receive a

credit for over application of surface water according to the following schedule:

Over Application of Surface Water for Irrigation Purposes

1-1

Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency



Policy 1: Water Measurements Metering
i. The credit calculated using this equation will be tracked and

will increase the landowner groundwater account managed by

the GSA. For every acre-foot of over applied surface water,

90% credit goes to the landowner account, 10% to the GSA.

ii. For all groundwater credits issued to the landowners from

over application of irrigation water, the credits will be available
and carried over to subsequent years. The term of the credits

will be perpetual. The groundwater credits can also be

transferred, sold, or leased to other landowners based upon

the GSA groundwater transfer policy.

The satellite imagery used to determine the ET values, will be audited by the
GSA through spot checking land use for cropping patterns and compared to
available District metered data.

1-2

Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency



Policy 2: Groundwater Banking at the Landowner Level

Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater
Sustainability Agency

GROUNDWATER BANKING AT THE LANDOWNER LEVEL

Irriqation District Recharge

The irrigation district oversees and manages the surface water for the district, separate

and apart for the Groundwater Sustainability Agency. The irrigation district recognizes the
surface water supplied is very important to achieve groundwater sustainability and needed for
the landowners to continue operations of their farms and that landowners need to be able to

balance all of these resources to achieve sustainability under SGMA.

When surface water beyond what is needed to meet irrigation demands is available, the
irrigation district will maximize the use of these surface waters and divert these waters into

the natural waterways, open channel canals, and district owned recharge basins. This will occur

most often during above average water years when those waters cannot be stored and are

released from local reservoirs. The surface water diverted and recharged into groundwater into

district owned facilities is done to benefit ail the landowners within the district without regard for
specific credits under SGMA. Additionally, the irrigation districts will continue to optimize the
distribution systems to maximize the recharge of surface water while supplying surface water to
landowners as efficiently as possible.

Landowner Groundwater Banking

During periods where surplus surface waters are available, landowners within the GSA

can divert surface water into landowner owned designated recharge facilities for future

groundwater credits. Surface water for banking can be:

1. Water the landowner purchases from the irrigation District through regular surface

water purchase procedures.

2. Water rights water available to the landowner. E.g. Poplar Ditch share water

3. The District has established the following priority order of water service and related
canal capacities:

• Deliveries for irrigation demand

• District recharge/banking for the benefit of all landowners

• Landowner recharge/banking

When this occurs, the landowner can bank this surface water that is recharged to

groundwater under the following conditions:

1. The surface water purchased must be applied directly to a specific groundwater

recharge basin that meets the minimum GSA requirements for a groundwater

2-1

Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Plan



Policy 2: Groundwater Banking at the Landowner Level

recharge basin. The location of the basin must be registered with the GSA to receive

any credits.

• All surface water diverted to the landowner is required to be metered
per GSA metering requirements.

Surface water diverted will be credited to the landowner at 90% of the surface
water diverted. The remaining 10% credit will remain with the GSA for the
benefit of all the landowners.

• The groundwater credits issued to the landowners will be available and

carried over to subsequent years. The term of the credits will be perpetual.

The groundwater credits can also be transferred, sold, or leased to other

landowners based upon the GSA groundwater transfer criteria.

2. Landowners can also use District owned recharge facilities to generate groundwater

credits subject to the following criteria:
• The landowner provides water from available allocation, purchase or water

rights
Use of the District recharge facility is subject to available capacity as
determined by the District
Groundwater credits will be credited to the landowner account at 75% of the
surface water diverted. The remaining 25% credit will remain with the GSA for
the benefit of all the landowners.

2-2

Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Plan



Policy 3: Water Accounting and Water Transfers

Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Susfainability Agency

WATER ACCOUNTING AND WATER TRANSFERS

To effectively achieve groundwater sustainability within the GSA and the Tule Subbasin,
while maintaining the agriculture operations during the implementation of SGMA, each landowner
within the GSA will be provided a baseline groundwater credit. These groundwater credits act as
an individual water bank account for each landowner, allowing each landowner to decide how to

feasibly and economically manage their farm operation within the rules established by the GSA
and theTule Subbasin.

Water Accountino:

To adequately track, monitor, and account for the water credits within the GSA, the

following water budget will be established and monitored for each landowner1 in the GSA:

Groundwater Credit Inputs:

Tule Subbasin Sustainable Yield

Definition:

Common Groundwater available to all landowners
within Tule Subbasin, defined under Subbasin
Coordination Agreement

Precipitation Yield
Annual average precipitation in the GSA, calculated
from 1991 going forward. Precipitation yield credits
are not transferrable.

Districted Allocated Groundwater Credits
Allocated by the Board annually. Based on water
diverted for recharge by the District, along with canal
seepage losses in District canals. Allocated
amounts will be credited to landowners proportionally
based on assessed acres.

Landowner Developed Credits Surface Water diverted by the landowner into a
specified recharge basin, credited per criteria set
forth in Policy 2: Banking at Landowner Level.

Surface Water over-applied by landowner beyond
crop demand, credited per criteria set forth in Policy
2.

Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency
Pixley Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency

3-1



Policy 3: Water Accounting and Water Transfers

A credit or deficit for each landowner account will be accounted for on a monthly basis by
the GSA.

Water Transfers:

Landowners may transfer groundwater water credits through either a direct sale or lease.

The process for transferring groundwater credits is as follows:

1. Transfers within the GSA;
1. Groundwater credits will be tracked at a land-based level. Transfers of any credits

accrued to the land requires the written approval of the landowner to transfer.

2. Groundwater credits can only be transferred by a landowner that has a positive

balance in their groundwater budget. Deficit groundwater credit transferring is not
allowed.

3. For every one acre-foot of groundwater credit a Landowner transfers out of their

account, they cannot use one acre-foot of Transitional Groundwater Credit in that year.

They will regain access to the restricted Transitional Pumping amounts in the next

year.

4. A groundwater credit transfer is a one to one transfer within the GSA. Transfers

outside the GSA are subject to the Coordination with other Tule Subbasin GSAs.
5. All groundwater credit transfers require formal notification (GSA approved transfer

template) and approval of the GSA. The GSA will keep an account of all transfers
within the GSA Water Accounting Program. The sale or lease terms of the

groundwater credits is between landowners and not subject to disclosure.

2. . Transfers to other GSAs;

General Provisions;

o Groundwater credits will be tracked at a land-based level.

o Groundwater credits can only be transferred by a landowner that has a positive

balance in their groundwater budget. Deficit groundwater credit transferring is

not allowed.

o For every one acre-foot of groundwater credit a Landowner transfers out of

their account, they cannot use one acre-foot of Transitional Groundwater

Credit in that year. They will regain access to the restricted Transitional
Pumping amounts in the next year.

o Groundwater Credits can only be transferred and used in GSAs within the Tule
Subbasin that have similar landowner-based groundwater accounting systems

as the LTRID and Pixley GSAs.
o Groundwater credits may not be transferred or used outside of the Tule

Subbasin.

o A groundwater credit transfer is a one to one transfer ratio.

o The maximum amount of groundwater transfers out of the GSA per year will

be limited to 10,000 AF.

3-2

Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency
Pixley Irrigation District Groundwater Sustajnability Agency



Policy 3: Water Accounting and Water Transfers

o The maximum amount of groundwater transfers accepted into the District per

year will be limited to 10,000 AF.
o The annual Deadline to submit transfer requests is May 1 of each year.

o If the total transfers requested are in excess of the 10,000 AF annual limit, the

transfers approved will be allocated on a per acre owned basis.

Example:

• Grower A requests 6,000 AF transfer

• Grower B requests 6,000 AF transfer

• Grower C requests 6.000 AF transfer

• Grower A owns 1 ,000 acres

• Grower B owns 500 acres

• Grower C owns 250 acres

• Each landowner will be allowed to transfer 5.71 AF/AC (10,000
AF limit ,1,750 acres)

3. Administration and Approval
a. All groundwater credit transfers require formal notification (GSA approved

transfer template) and approval of the GSA. The GSA will keep an account
of all transfers within the GSA Water Accounting Program. The sale or

lease terms of the groundwater credits is between landowners and not

subject to disclosure.

b. There will be a $100 fee, per transfer, charged by the GSA for

administration and coordination with the other GSAs.

c. In order to avoid undesirable results and avoid localized impacts, transfers

into certain areas may be limited or restricted even further by the GSA.

i. The Groundwater Planning Commission and Board of Directors will

annually review the hydrographs at each Representative Monitoring
Site in the GSA to determine such restrictions for that year.

4. Implementation of the terms of this entire policy will be reviewed and determined

annually by the Groundwater Planning Commission and Board of Directors. The

Board of Directors reserves the right to change terms of this policy at any time.

3-3

Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency
Pixley Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency



Policy 4: Transitional Groundwater Credits

Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency

TRANSITIONAL GROUNDWATER CONSUMPTION

To assist landowners with the transition to implementation of the Sustainable Groundwater
Management Act, groundwater use and extraction above basin wide sustainable yield will be

phased based on periodic reviews of the GSP per the guidelines of SGMA.

The GSA will provide access to a water accounting program to track all water credits

including District allocated groundwater credits, landowner developed groundwater credits,

sustainable yield credits, precipitation yield credits, surface water allocations and transitiona!

water consumption.

During the period of GSP implementation, transitional water credits (groundwater
consumption above other available credits), may be consumed consistent with the following

criteria:

1. Use will be consistent with the policies established for avoiding the undesirable

effects under SGMA;
2. Transitional water will be available based on the following sequencing:

i. Surface water allocation

ii. Precipitation yield credits
iii. Sustainable yield groundwater credits
jv. District allocated groundwater credits

v. Transitional water credits**

vj. Landowner developed groundwater credits**

**The sequencing of the Transitional water credits and Landowner

developed groundwater credits can be switched at the landowner's

discretion.

3. Transitional water credits will be available based on assessed acres and made

available in 5-year blocks.

4. Transitional water credits stay with the landowner to be used on properties within
the GSA and cannot be transferred to other landowners.

5. An upper limit for net groundwater use, including transitional water allocations, will

be established. Exceeding this limit will result in fines and reduced allocations in

the next year, per Policy #8 Implementation & Enforcement of Plan Actions.

6. There will be a phased approach to the availability of groundwater for transitional
water. The GSP will provide for levels of groundwater consumption that will be
higher during the initial phases and decreasing over time to reach sustainable

consumption levels (as required by SGMA) by 2040. The amount of Transitional
water available will be determined at the beginning of each phase.

a. The first phase of transitional water will be from 2020 through the 2025
(2 AF/Acre/year)

b. The second phase of transitional water will be from 2026 through 2030

4-1

Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency



Policy 4: Transitional Groundwater Credits

(1.5AF/Acre/year)
c. The third phase of transitional water will be 2031 through 2035

(1 AF/Acre/year)
d. The final phase of transitional water will be from 2031 through 2040

(0.5 AF/Acre/year)
7. There will be a fee schedule for transitional water consumption. The fee schedule

will be implemented as described below in 2020.
i. Tier 1 of transitional water consumption is 50% of the total

transitional water allocated for the period and shall be assessed a

fee of $90 per acre foot starting in 2021. The price will be adjusted
annually by the Board based on a formula using the change in the

Friant Class 1 water rate.

ii. Tier 2 is transitional water consumption over Tier 1, up to the total

transitional water allocation and shall be charged a fee of two times

the rate of tier 1 transitional water consumption.

in. There will be no fee applied during 2020 for the first 2 acre-feet of

Transitional water consumed. Consumption over 2 acre-feet during

2020 will follow the fee schedule above.

The above fee schedule is intended to serve as both a disincentive mechanism

while also relating to the cost of mitigating the impacts of use of transitional
pumping allocations. The above amounts, being based on the cost of Friant Class

1 water, were based in part on an analysis of replacement water costs, and in part

on the costs of groundwater production as the basis for an effective economic

disincentive. Further analysis and additional justifications for the level of the fee
may be considered annually by the GSA.

8. Revenues will be used to mitigate impacts and implement projects and programs

including, but not limited to:
• Friant Kern Canal capacity correction

m Surface water development

• Additional recharge basin construction

• Monitoring impacts and effects of groundwater pumping.

• Other projects that may be identified by the GSA. (examples could
include water conservation grants to GSA members, land conservation

and set-aside programs, or any other projects the GSA deems

appropriate to help meet the sustainability goal).

A specific plan of mitigation will be developed and will be based on relative levels
of impacts that can be shown to be associated with transitional pumping.

Additional analysis, including technical analysis of projected impacts together with
costs of effective and reasonable mitigation measures, will be completed as part

ofGSP implementation.

4-2

Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency



Policy 5; Landowner Surface Water Imported Into the GSA

Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency

LANDOWNER SURFACE WATER IMPORTED INTO THE GSA

District Landowners may participate in water exchanges or transfers outside of the GSA

boundary that result in surface water being available for direct use by the landowner. Use of that

water by the landowner within the GSA requires the use of Irrigation District infrastructure to divert
this surface water to their land.

This surface water that is brought into the GSA by the landowner will be tracked and
accounted by the GSA and applied to the landowner's water budget according to the following
procedures:

1. Surface water brought into the GSA and credited to the landowner will be subject to a

loss/reduction factor as determined by the Irrigation District Board ofDirectors.

2. Surface water brought into the GSA will be delivered to the landowner based upon

canal capacity. No surface water delivery brought into the GSA will interrupt or interfere
with scheduled allocations of the District surface water supplies.

3. Imported surface water may be used for groundwater recharge subject to the policies

of the GSP.

5-1

Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency
Pixley Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency



Policy 6: District Allocated Groundwater Credits

Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency

DISTRICT ALLOCATED GROUNDWATER CREDITS

The Irrigation District (District) owns and operates existing recharge basins. These basins,

along with the open channel canal distribution systems, provide for both direct and indirect
groundwater recharge. During times when surface water supplies beyond the irrigation needs of

the landowners are available, the District uses the basins to divert the surface water for

groundwater recharge. This happens most often in wetter years and comes in the form of Class

Two under the Friant Contracts and flood releases from Lake Success. Recharge through channel

loss in the distribution system occurs at all times when water is in the canals. These District owned
facilities create additional opportunities for establishing groundwater credits beyond the Safe Yield
of the Tule Subbasin.

Any groundwater credits developed through recharge basins and through loss in

the distribution system remains with the District and will not be allocated in full to the
landowners if a determination is made by the GSA Board that minimum threshold amounts

identified in the GSP have not been met,

District Owned Land Based Groundwater Recharge Credits:

The lands owned through fee title by the irrigation district are allocated a sub basin wide
Sustainable Yield. The Sustainable Yield allocated to District owned lands by virtue of being in
the Tule Subbasin, may be re-allocated back to the District Landowners proportionate to the
landowner's assessed acreage in the GSA.

Surface Water Recharge Groundwater Credits:

The imported surface water that is diverted for recharge by the District into District owned
facilities (both recharge basins and canals) will be tracked and accounted as groundwater credits
belonging to the District. The District will allocate these credits to lands within the GSA in the
following manner:

Up to 90% of the water diverted into the District groundwater recharge basins, and
water accounted for as channel loss in the canals, will be available for allocation. The

remaining 10% of the recharge water will not be allocated to landowners in the District
as it is used to account for evaporation and other losses. Adjustments to the percent

of recharge water allocated as groundwater credits may occur based on groundwater

monitoring, avoiding undesirable results, and to help avoid minimum thresholds.

The District will allocate the groundwater recharge credits proportionatly to all
landowners within the District by assessed acres. All District landowners pay an equal

land based assessment and each landowner will be provided an equal groundwater

credit based upon gross acreage owned within the District and irrespective of any

6-1

Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency



Policy 6: District Allocated Groundwater Credits

access to surface water that landowners may have through water rights, riparian water

or any other surface water.

The transfer or sale of the District groundwater recharge credits within the GSA will be
permitted in accordance with Policy 3.

6-2

Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency



Policy 7: CSD & PUD Water Use within the GSA

Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency

CSD & PUD Water Use within the GSA

A community service district (CSD) is an entity formed by residents of an unincorporated
area to provide a wide variety of services to its residences, particularly water and wastewater

management, along with many others. A CSD may be formed and operated in accordance with

the Community Services District Law (Government Code §61000-61850), which was created to
provide an alternate method of providing services in unincorporated areas.

The Public Utility District Act authorizes the formation of public utiUty districts (PUD) and
authorizes a district to acquire, construct, own, operate, and control works for supplying its

inhabitants with water and other critical components for everyday life.

Within the LTRID GSA boundary are the following CSDs and PUDs ("Community):

Tipton CSD
Woodville PUD
Poplar CSD

Each Community entered into an MOU with the LTRID GSA to cooperate on SGMA
implementation. Consistent with Section 3 of the MOU, the Community will be considered within
the boundaries of the LTRID GSA and included in the LTRID Groundwater Sustainability Plan.

Consistent with Section 6 of the MOU,_LTRID will identify the Community as a separate
management area. As its own management area, LTRID will specifically address the minimum

thresholds and measurable objectives for the Community to achieve sustainable management.

Reporting of Community Water Use

Consistent with Section 7 of the IV10U, the Community will provide LTRID the following
information for determining the net groundwater usage of the Community:

On a quarterly basis:

Each Community will submit the total of groundwater pumped from Community
wells.

Each Community will submit the total of water discharged to the wastewater
treatment system that is treated and diverted to percolation/evaporation ponds

7-1
Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency



Policy 7: CSD & PUD Water Use within the GSA

Minimum Thresholds and Measurable Objectives

The following will be considered the minimum thresholds and measurable objectives
required by the Community to meet the sustainability for the implementation of the LTRID GSP
for the period from January 2020 to January 2026;

The net of water pumped minus water discharged will be considered total Community

water use

The total of all treated water discharged to percolation/evaporation ponds, less 10%,

will be available to the LTRID GSA for calculation and use in total LTRID GSA water
balance.

If the Community is providing any treated discharge to adjacent lands, the Community
shall provide a regular accounting to the LTRID GSA that includes total volume amount
discharged and APN(s) receiving the discharge.

The water use will be reviewed through periodic updates to the GSP and will be
compared to the available sustainable yield for the community and pumping limits
acceptable to the GSA, as allowed under the regulatory code of SGMA.

Community wells will include all wells used by the Community that are connected to
the Community water distribution system.

The Community and the GSA Board of Directors agree to cooperate on conditions of

approval for future growth to ensure they are consistent with GSA and Community
policies including pursing grant funding opportunities, outreach and joint projects for
developing additional water supply for the Community.

7-2
Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency



Policy 8; Implementation & Enforcement of Plan Actions

Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainabillty Agency

IMPLEIVIENTATION & ENFORCEIV1ENT OF PLAN ACTIONS

This Groundwater Sustainabiiity Plan (GSP) establishes the actions, which include the
policies, projects, and implementation schedule, to achieve groundwater sustainability, in

accordance with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA).

A major element of implementation is the establishment of the accounting system, the
enforcement of regulatory fees related to that system of accounting, and identification of mitigation

items to be funded through those fees. Regulatory fees, and the process for establishing them,

are discussed in greater depth in Policy 4 related to Transitional Pumping policies. As noted in
that policy, the level and justification for fees for transitional pumping are subject to continued
analysis and decision making by the GSA governing body and will be a major element of
implementation of the GSP.

Regarding enforcement, for those landowners within the GSA who do not comply with the
Actions of the GSP established to achieve sustainability, SGMA provides the GSA with the
authority to enforce the approved actions. The Action of the GSP which are enforceable under

the GSP include:

1. Failure to pay GSA assessments or groundwater consumption fees

2. Consumption ofgroundwater beyond the allowable limits set forth in the GSP
3. Failure to provide the GSA with required information

In the event of noncompliance by a landowner of the GSA, the following enforcement

process will be implemented:

At the time a landowner is identified as not complying with the approved Actions of
the GSP, a Notice of Non-Compliance (NONC) letter will be issued to the landowner.
The NONC will identify the area(s) of non-compliance and request formal response
from the landowner identifying plan to get back into compliance within 30 days.

If the landowner does not respond to the NONC letter within 30 days, a Notice of
Violation (NOV) will be issued to the landowner, stating that the landowner is now in
violation of the GSP implementing SGMA. The NOV will request a meeting within 15
days to discuss a plan of action to meet compliance. At the time of issuing a NOV, an

administrative fine of $5 per acre fee will be assessed to that parcel(s) in violation, to
be paid within 15 days.

If a landowner has been determined to have consumed groundwater beyond the

allowable limits, the landowner will receive a penalty of $1,000 per acre-foot and a

8-1

Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency
Pixley Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency



Policy 8: Implementation & Enforcement of Plan Actions

reduction of groundwater credits will be applied to the landowner account. The

reduction shall be the average of consumption plus a factor of 1.5 times.

If a landowner does not correct a NOV, a lien against the property will be filed by the
GSA and the GSA will pursue action according to Water Codes Sections 25500- 26677

If a lien has been filed against the property for outstanding balances (amounts added
to assessments) from the previous year, then the landowner will not be served any

surface water pursuant to Irrigation District policy.

All fees collected will be used to for GSP implementation activities, including but not
limited to, GSA administration and GSP project funding and implementation.

As with regulatory fees, all enforcement actions are subject to further refinement and definition as

technical data and monitoring results are collected through the various management actions

identified in the GSP.

8-2

Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency
Pixley Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainability Agency




